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The Robert Stanton House is located in the Pawcatuck section of Stonington 
Connecticut, on Little Narragansett Bay. The Stanton House is a central- 
chimney structure, two stories tall with a pitched roof, usually given a 
date of 1700.! Apparently, the west end was "built earliest and the east enc 
added later. Much of the interior woodwork may date later, from the time 
of the east end's construction. Elmer D. Keith characterizes the house as 
a Rhode Island house, not a Connecticut house, in certain elements of its 
detailing and construction, such as its eight foot ceilings. The prox­ 
imity to Rhode Island of the Stanton House explains this converging in­ 
fluence.

The house is oak framed. Three rafters, damaged in the Hurrican of 1938, 
were replaced with oak "beams milled specifically for the repair. The 
facade is clapboarded on planking. Shingles on the rear were "modern" ac­ 
cording to information recorded by the Connecticut Society of the Colonial 
Dames in 1901* while, it is claimed, the shingles on the end walls are 
"original".3 Though it is unlikely that the same shingles, dating from the 
18th-century, are still in place, nonetheless, they are unusual for their 
great length, three feet, and height, one foot. The foundations of the 
house are fieldstone, laid with shell lime. The chimney, brick from about 
four feet above the floor, was probably rebuilt, in brick, at the time of 
the addition of the east end. It stands on a fieldstone foundation and has 
been plastered with concrete in the attic. There is a heavy overhang at 
the gable ends and a deep overhanging cornice.

The facade, five bays wide, contains nine windows with twelve over twelve 
sash and a plain door with a six-light transom. Twelve over twelve sash 
predominate in the rest of the house. Though some of the window frames 
which project from the walls, have been replaced, others exhibit molded 
sills and pegged construction, with the sills and heads extending beyond 
the jambs. In the two attic windows of the east end, the lower sash are 
two panes high, with the upper, three pans high, while at the west end, 
the pattern is reversed, two up, three down. Frederick Kelly described 
this uneven configuration as "the earliest type of double-hung window with 
rectangular panes,"^ and states that the projection of the window frame 
beyond the exterior wall covering is "a marked characteristic of these 
early window frames."5 Thus, it seems that the windows of the Stanton 
House, though double-hung are nonetheless of an early type.

There are several one-story single rooms added to the rear of the house. 
They appear to date from the late l8th- or early 19th-century, while a 
hipped roof one-room addition probably was built early in the 20th-century. 
Two barns, one approximately two hundred years old and the other built 
around one hundred years ago, a greenhouse, several chicken coops, a pig- 
house, and a kennel also stand on the property. The house stands on a 
rocky rise in the land at the eastern edge of the property, overlooking 
the cornfields and salt marsh beyond with the Bay in the distance.
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The most outstanding feature of the house is the fine interior Woodwork 
 fehroughout. The staircase has raised panelling and is painted ivory. and 
blue, apparently the original scheme, .according to scrapings done in the 
1930s. Most notable are the elaborate turned balusters, three to a tread. 
They are mahogany and are thought to have been imported from England. A 
pattern of three different turnings is repeated on each tread. The newel 
is twisted as well and twisted pendants mark the turn of the staircase. 
A fine corner cupboard with a carved shell niche stands in 'the east room; 
it, too, is said to have been imported from England, and probably was in­ 
stalled at the time the east room was added. Though unpainted in 1930s 
HABS photographs, the cupboard is presently painted white. Some of the 
Stanton family were engaged in trade in Barbados at this time; the 
supposition that the woodwork arrived from England via the West Indies 
arose from this fact. .Elsewhere on the first floor the panelling and 
molding is abundant.

The height of the ceilings is 8 ! 3", a fact which Keith states if far more 
common in Rhode Island houses of this age than- in Connecticut houses. 6 
In the west room, there are two summers, both cased. The fireplace wall 
is panelled and there are two small china cupboards directly above the 
mantel, which is a composition of several heavily built-up moldings. The 
posts are heavy but not .Glared. In the east room, the summer beam has. 
been plastered over. The fireplace wall is handsomely and elaborately 
finished with fluted panels and heavy molded consoles which support a 
molded cornice. The mantel is richly molded. In both the west and east 
rooms., the windows have hinged interior shutters with raised panelling. 
Also in both rooms, there are molded cornices. The panelling here and 
throughout the house probably dates from the time of the addition.

.Upstairs, there is similar, simpler panelling in the east end room and in 
the borning room, above the kitchen. The posts here are cased ana flared. 
The kitchen has a particularly large fireplace; there is also a fireplace 
above in the borning. room. There is a double cornerpost in the kitchen 
suggesting the addition of the east end.

The house is not centrally heated; 19th-century coal- and wood-burning 
stoves are used throughout. In 1936, the house was recorded by the His­ 
toric American Buildings Survey. The property, approximately 225 acres, 
is still used as a farm. In the late   18th-century, when the Davises 
first acquired the property, five varieties of salt-marsh hay grew on
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the property, presently, 35 acres are cleared for johnnycake corn and 
hay. There are 45 acres of marshland and 32 acres of woods. The re­ 
mainder of the acreage is pasture. In 1765* the farm was leased to 
John Davis of Long Island and, in 1772, the Davises purchased it from 
the Stantons. Ever since then, it has been the Davis family homestead.

1. Keith, Elmer D.,"Write-ups", on old houses in Stonington, p. 46y

2. Ibid., p. 268.

3. Palmer, Emma W., "Historical and Technical Information in re Davis 
Homestead," Connecticut Society of the Colonial Dames in America, 
1913.

4. Kelly, .J. Frederick, EARLY DOMESTIC AREHI1ECTURE OP CONNECTICUT, 
New York, Dover Publications, Inc., 1963,.p. .92.

5. Ibid., p. .93.

6. Keith, p. 468.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Robert Stanton House,, c. 1JOO, is significant for the degree to 
which it is preserved. It is "a simple, almost rough,, house'-, archi­ 
tecturally unrefined, whose heavy overhang, weathered siding, and 
primitive lines bespeak its great age. The house has been almost un­ 
altered since the 18th-century and is in.need.of repair. However, the 
interior of this plain house is unexpectedly fine. The quality of the 
interior woodwork is completely belied by the roughness of the exterior, 
but is is outstanding and lavishly applied. In addition, the house- is 
part of a working farm which has been worked by the same family for 
over two hundred years. The land on which the house stands is part of 
the original holdings of the Stanton family; the Stantons were one of 
four white families who originally settled Stonington, Connecticut.

Thomas Stanton, the first,was an Indian interpreter to the General 
Court in Hartford^. In 1649, he moved to Pawcatuck, becoming one of the 
first white settlers of the area, and, in 1670, he made out the will of 
Uncas, the Mohegan chief. His son, Robert, distinguished himself as a 
youth by capturing King Philip's lieutenant, Canonchet, in a foray led 
by Captain 'George Denison of Pequotsepos Manor.- In 1677, Robert married 
Joanna Gardlher,. While the original owner of the house is unknown, pre­ 
sumably it was their son, Thomas, who built the house. In 1713, Thomas 
Stanton married Thankful Denison. Grace Denison Wheeler states that 
Thomas and Thankful left the house to their son, Robert, born in 1716. 
It would seem that this son, Robert, was responsible for the addition of 
the east end and for the interior woodwork, probably done at the same time. 
This Robert Stanton, whose name now Identifies the house, leased it to 
the Davises in 1765, in whose family the house has remained ever since.

At the time of the American Revolution, the Davises harvested their salt 
hay and transported it to Groton, where it was stacked ready for use 
as feed for the horses of the troops of the Continental Army. The 
remainder was sold to farmers at North Stonington and the proceeds sent 
to the Continental Congress. Since then, the salt marsh has been known 
as the Continental Marsh. Salt marsh on the Davis property is said to 
be the last section of untouched marshland along the coast from New York 
to Cape Cod and ten acres have recently, been placed by the owners in a 
land conservation trust.
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Architecturally, a number of features of the house are significant. 
The early double-hung sash, some with molded sills, are still in place. 
The balusters of the staircase are unusually ornate for Connecticut 
houses; the fireplace panelling on the walls of both the east and west 
front rooms is also elaborate and massively built-up. The deep shell 
niche of the corner cupboard in the east room is comparatively rare in 
Connecticut houses. Another comparatively rare feature are the hinged 
interior shutters, found in both front rooms, which do not fold into 
the window reveal, but rather back against the wall.
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